
Planning Policy & Built 
Heritage Working Party 
  

 
Please contact: Lauren Gregory 
Please email: Lauren.Gregory@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
Please direct dial on: 01263 516108 
 
Friday, 13 May 2022 
 
A meeting of the Planning Policy & Built Heritage Working Party of North Norfolk District Council will 
be held in the remotely via Zoom on Monday, 23 May 2022 at 10.00 am. 
 
 
At the discretion of the Chairman, a short break will be taken after the meeting has been running for 
approximately one and a half hours 
 

Members of the public who wish to ask a question or speak on an agenda item are requested to notify 
the committee clerk 24 hours in advance of the meeting and arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of 
the meeting. This is to allow time for the Committee Chair to rearrange the order of items on the agenda 
for the convenience of members of the public. Further information on the procedure for public speaking 
can be obtained from Democratic Services, Tel: 01263 516108, Email: Lauren.Gregory@north-
norfolk.gov.uk. 
 
Anyone attending this meeting may take photographs, film or audio-record the proceedings and report 
on the meeting.  Anyone wishing to do so must inform the Chairman.  If you are a member of the public 
and you wish to speak on an item on the agenda, please be aware that you may be filmed or 
photographed. 

 

Please note that Committee members will be given priority to speak during the debate of agenda items 

 
 
Emma Denny 
Democratic Services Manager 
 
To: Mr A Brown, Mrs P Grove-Jones, Mr N Dixon, Mr P Fisher, Ms V Gay, Mr P Heinrich, Mr R Kershaw, 
Mr G Mancini-Boyle, Mr N Pearce, Mr J Punchard, Dr C Stockton and Mr J Toye 
 
All other Members of the Council for information. 
Members of the Management Team, appropriate Officers, Press and Public 

 

If you have any special requirements in order 
to attend this meeting, please let us know in advance 

If you would like any document in large print, audio, Braille, alternative format or in 
a different language please contact us 

 
Corporate Directors:  Steve Blatch 

Tel 01263 513811  Fax  01263 515042  Minicom  01263 516005 
Email  districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk  Web site  www.north-norfolk.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

mailto:districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk


A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 
 

2.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 

 
 

3.   MINUTES 
 

 
 

 The Minutes of 25th April 2022 will be presented for approval for the next 
meeting, 20th June 2022. 
 

 

4.   ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 
 

 To determine any other items of business which the Chairman decides 
should be considered as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 
100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

     Pages 1 - 6 
 

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may 
have in any of the following items on the agenda.  The Code of Conduct for 
Members requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and 
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest.  Members are requested to 
refer to the attached guidance and flowchart. 
 

 

6.   UPDATE ON MATTERS FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING (IF ANY) 
 

 
 

7.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 
AND AS PREVIOUSLY DETERMINED UNDER ITEM 4 ABOVE 
 

 
 

8.   GLAVEN VALLEY VILLAGES CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISALS  
& MANAGEMENT PLANS 2022 
 
 

Pages 7 - 12 
 

 Summary: 
 

This report seeks approval to adopt the draft 
Brinton, Edgefield, Hunworth, Sharrington, Stody 
and Thornage Conservation Area Appraisals 
along with the associated Management Proposals 
contained therein.  

Recommendations: 1. That Working Party recommend to 

Cabinet to adopt the six Glaven Valley 

Village Appraisals for statutory 

planning purposes and for the 

Appraisal documents to become 

material considerations in the planning 

process. 

    

2. That Working Party recommend to 

Cabinet to agree the proposed 

boundary changes as recommended in 

 



the draft Appraisal documents and that 

they be published in accordance with 

the Planning (Listed Buildings & 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

 3. That Working Party recommend to 

Cabinet to agree the proposed Local 

Listings as identified within the draft 

Appraisal documents.   

  

Cabinet Members(s) Ward(s) Affected 

All Members All Wards 

Contact Officer(s), telephone number and email:  

Alannah Hogarth, Conservation & Design Officer, 01263 516367 
 

 
 

9.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 
 

  To pass the following resolution (if necessary): 
 

“That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 
the following items of business on the grounds that they 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to the Act.” 

 

 

10.   TO CONSIDER ANY EXEMPT MATTERS ARISING FROM 
CONSIDERATION OF THE PUBLIC BUSINESS OF THE AGENDA 
 

 
 

11.   ANY OTHER URGENT EXEMPT BUSINESS AT THE DISCRETION 
OF THE CHAIRMAN AND AS PREVIOUSLY DETERMINED UNDER 
ITEM 4 ABOVE 
 

 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



   

Registering interests 

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you 
must register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out 
in Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register  
details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2 
(Other Registerable Interests). 

 “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means  an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are 
aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 

"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband 
or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28

days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered

interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the

councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence

or intimidation.

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with

the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer

agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable

Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not

participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room

unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not

have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.

Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate

and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. Where  you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is
being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of  your executive function,
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or
further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other

Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You

may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at

the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it

is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



   

Disclosure of  Non-Registerable Interests 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest

or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest  set out in Table 1) or a

financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the

interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed

to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you  must not take part in any discussion or vote

on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a

dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of

the interest.

8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects –

a. your own financial interest or well-being;

b. a financial interest or well-being of a  relative, close associate; or

c. a body included in those you need to disclose under Other Registrable

Interests  as set out in Table 2

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the 
meeting after disclosing your interest  the following test should be applied 

9. Where a matter affects your financial interest or well-being:

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it

would affect your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to 

speak at the meeting. Otherwise you  must not take part in any discussion or vote 

on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a 

dispensation. 

If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

10. Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you have
made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must make sure  that any
written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of your interest.

Page 2



    

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the 

Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 

Subject Description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
council) made to the councillor during the 
previous 12-month period for expenses 
incurred by him/her in carrying out 
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards 
his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the 

Page 3

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which 
such person is a partner, or an incorporated 
body of which such person is a director* or 
a body that such person has a beneficial 
interest in the securities of*) and the council 
— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, 
interest or right in or over land which does 
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or 
civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were spouses/ 
civil partners (alone or jointly with another) 
a right to occupy or to receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the council; and

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor,
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is living as
if they were spouses/ civil partners is a
partner of or a director* of or has a
beneficial interest in the securities* of.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a 
body where— 

(a) that body (to the councillor’s
knowledge) has a place of business or
land in the area of the council; and

(b) either—

(i) ) the total nominal value of the
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were

Page 4



  

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and

provident society.

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a

collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act

2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building

society.

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is 
likely to affect:  

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you
are nominated or appointed by your authority

b) any body

(i) exercising functions of a public nature

(ii) any body directed to charitable purposes or

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or trade union)

spouses/civil partners has a beneficial 
interest exceeds one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that class. 

Page 5



Guidance on Local Government Association Model Councillor Code of Conduct | Local Government Association

Page 6



Agenda Item No____________ 

 

GLAVEN VALLEY VILLAGES CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISALS  

& MANAGEMENT PLANS 2022 

 

Summary: 

 

This report seeks approval to adopt the draft Brinton, Edgefield, 

Hunworth, Sharrington, Stody and Thornage Conservation Area 

Appraisals along with the associated Management Proposals 

contained therein.  

Recommendations: 1. That Working Party recommend to Cabinet to adopt the 

six Glaven Valley Village Appraisals for statutory 

planning purposes and for the Appraisal documents to 

become material considerations in the planning 

process. 

    

2. That Working Party recommend to Cabinet to agree the 

proposed boundary changes as recommended in the 

draft Appraisal documents and that they be published 

in accordance with the Planning (Listed Buildings & 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

 3. That Working Party recommend to Cabinet to agree the 

proposed Local Listings as identified within the draft 

Appraisal documents.   

  

 

Cabinet Members(s) Ward(s) Affected 

All Members All Wards 

Contact Officer(s), telephone number and email:  

Alannah Hogarth, Conservation & Design Officer, 01263 516367  

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



1. Introduction 

 

1.1 At its meeting on 17 May 2021, Working Party approved the Draft Glaven Valley Village  

Conservation Area Appraisals (CAA’s) for public consultation purposes. A nine week 

period of consultation was undertaken from 22 November 2021 to 21 January 2022. As a 

result of the representations received from members of the public and interested bodies; 

the six CAA’s have been amended and plans updated.   

 

1.2 As resolved at the aforementioned meeting, the CAA’s were presented before Working 

Party in their final draft form on the 25th April 2022, where Councillors deferred a decision 

on the basis of limited time prior to the meeting, and a number of unreseolved issues within 

the documents.  

 

1.3 The CAA’s now come back to Working Party for consideration by Working Party and final 

adoption by Cabinet, following a number of changes as put forward by Councillors 

following the April Working Party meeting. Comments received will be addressed 

individually and any responses will be shown in red below.  

 

2. Comments Received  
 
2.1 There has been a FOI request regarding the cost of the project, it would be helpful to 

have some clarity on this issue. 

The total fee proposal for all 11 Appraisals up to this point is £77,900, which includes all 

of the Glaven Villages and the Glaven Valley itself. Costs were not attributed on a place 

by place basis, so we can only give an average cost per Appraisal of c. £7,081. 

2.2 There has been concern raised regarding the absence of a prescribed mechanism for 

reviewing the outstanding Glaven Valley Rural CA (GVCA), we need to ensure that the 

correct areas excluded from this appraisal is mirrored in the GVCA when it's reviewed 

later this year. The area around Thornage Hall is particularly at risk of the GVCA 

boundary being underestimated. 

The village appraisals presented to Working Party are in essence a separate entity to the 

Glaven Valley designation, Working Party are not being asked at this stage to make any 

decisions about the Glaven Valley designation, a separate consultation for this part of the 

work will follow once the village boundaries have been finalised. 

2.3 Area E (on agenda page 523) on the Boundary Review Plan for Sharrington shaded 

brown is the site of several planning battles in the past and given the village is the 

exception to the rule that each village is within the wider rural GVCA, there is a question 

about why this small area of open landscape adjoining Bale Rd is being removed and it 

should be reconsidered.  

It is general best practice when reviewing conservation area boundaries, as advised by 

Historic England, to ensure that boundaries are logical and where possible follow distinct 

Page 8



features on the ground, such as hedgerows, fences or roadsides. In this instance, the 

small portion of the field that the area marked E includes follows no physical marker, and 

in practice becomes difficult to defend when it cuts somewhat arbitrarily through a field. 

Leaving this small portion of field within the boundary is considered to dilute the value of 

the designation, and any planning proposals that may come forward in this area will 

always have to consider and be assessed for their impact on the Sharrington 

Conservation Area by virtue of being situated in its immediate setting.  

Following a representation received as part of the public consultation, the decision was 

made to remove the area marked E. At this stage, the officer recommendation has to 

remain that this area does not positively contribute to the character and appearance of 

the conservation area, and should therefore, remain outside of the conservation area 

boundary as part of the immediate setting. 

2.4 A Glossary of Acronyms would help to navigate the text more easily. 

There is already a glossary of terms within each appraisal, but further acronyms can be 

added to help the documents more naviagable.  

2.5 Why is the LDP/Local Plan/Core Strategy not included in the Endnotes and Bibliography 

in each Appraisal, given that the purpose of the consultation is to frame planning policy? 

The Conservation Area Appraisals are not planning policy documents, once adopted 

they are Supplementary Planning Documents, that are designed to act in an advisory 

capacity as opposed to setting out precise planning policies as the Local Plan does.  

2.5 At what stage will the text be proofread to identify errors and omissions, examples of 

which are given below in the numbered points 18 and 20 below. This Appraisal 

document has been presented to the Working Party as a final draft with too many errors 

and textual inconsistencies in several factual contexts.  

The documents have been proofread by several people at several stages, there will 

inevitably be some oversights when working with such large and detailed documents, as 

well as a number of parallel and competing workstreams. However, the consultation 

process is an important part of ironing out any of those inconsistencies before the 

documents are then adopted in their final form. Even at that stage, any errors that may 

slip through are unlikely to be of such a degree that undermines the content and tone of 

the documents themselves.  

 
3. Itemised Changes  
3.1 Page 34 Response/Recommendations column. The proposed addition of Clause 7.6 is 

not consistent with the aims and objectives of the appraisals and the 2nd and 3rd 
sentences should be removed. The comments on funding and grant acquisition are 
misplaced, were not part of the original response and therefore risk objection from other 
village Church Councils who made no issue of their financial viability because they 
assumed it is not relevant in the process. 
 

Page 9



Issues of inancial burdens are not usually a consideration for the Conservation Area 
Appraisal process, there are circumstances where it is a relevant observation where 
financial burdens are leading to a deterioration in the character and appearance of the 
conservation area and as a result causing harm to its significance. Section 7.6 was 
added into the Sharrington appraisal as a result of representations received during the 
public consultation, and so a brief observation was included in the document noting that 
communal buildings do face financial constraints that affect their upkeep. No change 
recommended.  
 

3.2 Page 47 Response/Recommendations. Response on p 79 CA in line 4 should read 
"Please see above". Page 50 Response/Recommendations. Response to 16 & 17 The 
Street should read "they do not contribute" in 3rd line. Page 55 
Response/Recommendations. For clarity insert "and Full Council for adoption" after the 
words "Working Party to Cabinet." 
 
These points are noted, however, they refer to the officer responses already made, and 
submitted to the previous Working Party agenda. The purpose of this follow up report is 
to get the appraisals adopted not to make amendments to documents already submitted 
to and recorded on the agenda. The comments matrix is not being brought back before 
Working Party at this stage, as agreed at the April meeting. 
 

3.3 Page 67. Brinton 1.1 refers to the village of Thornton in line 4; this has been corrected to 
"Thornage". 

3.4 Page 131. Brinton. Following reference to the Council website criteria for local listed 
buildings, a link to the NNDC website has been inserted to the text. 

3.5 Page 148. Brinton. Should we be focusing on identifiable properties with property 
specific photos of UPVC doors and windows when presumably residents are aware of 
what UPVC looks like generically. 
 
Photos are used to leave no doubt about features that are considered harmful to the 
character and appearance of the conservation area. There is a vast amount of variation 
that falls under the term uPVC, as such Conservation & Design consider it worth 
highlighting particular examples where necessary.  
 

3.6 Page 154. Brinton. Same issue applies to photo of grey wheelie bins as UPVC windows 
in previous point. 
 
As above, photos are not used to name and shame, but to leave no room for doubt 
about the point being made.  
 

3.7 Page 212, para 1 line 11, 262. Reference to petrol station to "former petrol station" at 
RMC Autos MOT and service garage has been amended. 

3.8 Page 236 and Page 262. Edgefield. 4.3.5 line 16. After 75mm insert "and 1.5m in height 
from soil level' and remove 'six weeks 'and substitute 'a period' for consistency with 
similar text in other CAs. 

3.9 Page 271. Edgefield. Vehicle number plate in photo 4 pixilated for consistency and 
anonymity.  

3.10 Page 354. Hunworth. 4.3.5 Trees and Vegetation. Reference added to minimum 
dimensions for consistency with other CAs. 

3.11 Page 473. Sharrington. Reference to trees being subject to the Diocesan Faculty system 
(DFS) has been carried over to other appraisals to cover churchyard trees. 

Page 10



3.12 Pages 430, 486, 489, 492, 507, 523. Sharrington. The maps on these pages have been 
corrected to reflect the update to the boundary around the pond at Ash Yard. 

 
4. Procedural Matters and Next Steps  
 
3.1 Once adopted, the CAA’s will be published on the Councils website and the relevent 

statutory advertisement undertaken. The documents will then become material 
considerations in the planning process and can be referred to and referenced as part of 
the development management process. 

 
3.2 Following the adoption of the final six village conservation area appraisals and revised 

boundaries within the Glaven Valley, the Glaven Valley Conservation Area draft appraisal 
will be brought before the Working Party seeking approval to undertake the public 
consultation process that will underline the final stage of the Glaven Valley review 
programme. 

 

Recommendations:  

 

1. That Working Party grants delegated authority to officers to make the final 

amendments to the text of the appraisals in line with the comments received following 

the previous working party on 25 April 2022. 

 

2. That Working Party recommend to Cabinet to adopt the six Glaven Valley Village  

Appraisals for statutory planning purposes and for the Appraisal documents to 

become material considerations in the planning process. 

    

3. That Working Party recommend to Cabinet to agree the proposed boundary changes 

as recommended in the draft Appraisal documents and that they be published in 

accordance with the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

4. That Working Party recommend to Cabinet to agree the proposed Local Listings as 

identified within the draft Appraisal documents.   

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	Pages from Model Councillor Code of Conduct 2020 V2 0121
	Guidance on Local Government A_ Local Government Association 41

	8 GLAVEN VALLEY VILLAGES CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISALS <br/>& MANAGEMENT PLANS 2022<br/>



